
 LEVY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  COMMISSIONERS 
 Government Serving Citizens John Meeks 
  Rock Meeks 
  Mike Joyner, Vice Chair 
  Lilly Rooks 
  Matt Brooks, Chair 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson FL 32621 
Telephone: 352.486.5218 Fax: 352.486.5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org Website: levycounty.org 
  

Regular Meeting Agenda 
December 22, 2020 

9:00 AM 
 

Public Call-In Information 
     - Conference Call Number:  1-312-757-3121 
     - Enter Access Code:  442-460-677 
     - The phone lines will open at 08:40 AM 
     - All lines will be muted; listening capabilities only 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

Invocation 
Pledge to the Flag 
Roll Call of the Commissioners 
Approval of Agenda 
     - The Commissioners will approve and/or modify the official agenda at this time. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

     - Complete Public Comment Form and submit to the Board Chairman 
     - Approach podium, speak clearly into the microphone and state your full name and address 
     - Comments will be limited to a maximum of five (5) minutes per person 

PROCLAMATIONS/RECOGNITIONS 

1. Recognizing Linda Fugate for her 35 years serving the citizens of Levy County, with 20 of those 
years as the elected Levy County Tax Collector. 

09:15 AM:  LEVY COUNTY CITIZEN, LINDA COOPER 

2. Requesting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners to reverse action taken on 
December 8, 2020, that awarded Attorney Anne Bast Brown a 3% base salary increase.  

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

LEVY COUNTY BUILDING & ZONING – David Meyer, Development Director 

3. PUBLIC HEARING:   Requesting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners’ approval of 
Hardship Variance (Ha. Va. 03-20) for Angela Rain and William Rain. 

LEVY COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY – Mitch Harrell, Director 

4. Requesting the Board’s approval on the Memorandum of Understanding between the Levy 
County Board of County Commissioners and the Levy County Professional Paramedic and EMTs, 
IAFF, Local #4069; Recruitment and Retention Incentive Program. 

5. Requesting the Board’s approval of Resolution 2020-142 approving a Recruitment and Retention 
Incentive Program for full time Public Safety Paramedics and EMTs, approving Form 



Agenda 
December 22, 2020 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Agreements, and authorizing the Director of Public Safety to execute completed agreements on 
behalf of the Board. 

LEVY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT - John MacDonald, Director 

6. Ratification of LSE extensions of Emergency Declarations 2020-137 and 2020-138. 

LEVY COUNTY MOSQUITO CONTROL - Matt Weldon, Director 

7. Requesting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners’ approval of Florida Dept of 
Agriculture & Consumer Services – State Financial Assistance Agreement #27458 for FY 2020-
2021. 

8. Requesting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners’ approval of Resolution 2020-139 
to amend the Final Budget for FY 2020-2021.  Mosquito Control services. 

SHIP - Marlon Gayle, Housing Planner 

9.               A motion to approve the Subordination Agreement and authorize the Chair to execute the 
Agreement, subject to the condition subsequent that the information contained in Paragraph 2 
of the Agreement must be completed prior to recording and a copy of the completed, recorded 
Agreement being provided to the SHIP Department.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

- Complete Public Comment Form and submit to the Board Chairman 
- Approach podium, speak clearly into the microphone and state your full name and address 
- Comments will be limited to a maximum of five (5) minutes per person 

Recognize Elected Officials 

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 

Commissioner J. Meeks 

Commissioner R. Meeks 

Commissioner M. Joyner 

Commissioner L. Rooks 

Commissioner M. Brooks 



Agenda 
December 22, 2020 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

10. Selection of Chair and Vice Chair for the County Commission Board and updating the Board 
appointments for 2021. 

Approval of Expenditures 

Approval of Minutes 

11. Requesting Board approval of minutes for Regular Board Meeting and Final Budget Hearing held 
September 22, 2020. 

Adjourn 

Should any agency or person decide to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any 
matter considered at this meeting, such agency or person will need a record of the proceedings, and for 
such purpose, may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record 
includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, person needing a special accommodation or an 
interpreter to participate in the proceeding should contact the County Clerk’s Office at (352) 486-5266, 
or the Office of the Board of County Commissioners at (352) 486-5217, at least two (2) days prior to the 
date of the meeting. Hearing-impaired persons can access the foregoing telephone number by 
contacting the Florida Relay Service at 1-800-955-8770 (Voice) or 1-800-955-8771 (TDD). 
 



Levy County Board of County Commissioners Agenda Item Summary Form 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson Florida 32621 
Telephone (352) 486-5218   Fax (352) 486-5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org  Website:  www.levycounty.org 
 

1. Name: Matt Brooks 

2. Organization/Title/Telephone: BOCC/Chair 

3. Meeting Date: Tuesday, December 22, 2020 

4. Requested Motion/Action:  
Recognizing Linda Fugate for her 35 years serving the citizens of Levy County, with 20 of those 
years as the elected Levy County Tax Collector. 

5. Agenda Presentation: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

6. Time Requested: Click or tap to enter a date. 
(Request will be granted if Possible) allotted time not more than 15 minutes 

7. Is this Item Budgeted (If Applicable): Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

8. If no, State Action Required: 

a. Budget Action:  

b. Financial Impact Summary 
Statement:   

 

c. Detailed Analysis Attached  

d. Budget Officer Approval:  

 If approved enter date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

9. Background:  (Why is the action necessary, and what action will be accomplished) (All 
supporting documentation must be attached if any)  

 

10. Recommended Approval 

a. Department Director: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

b. County Attorney: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

c. County Coordinator:  Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

d. Other: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org


Levy County Board of County Commissioners Agenda Item Summary Form 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson Florida 32621 
Telephone (352) 486-5218   Fax (352) 486-5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org  Website:  www.levycounty.org 
 

1. Name: Linda Cooper 

2. Organization/Title/Telephone: Citizen 

3. Meeting Date: Tuesday, December 22, 2020 

4. Requested Motion/Action:  
              Requesting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners to reverse action taken on 
December 8, 2020, that awarded Attorney Anne Bast Brown a 3% base salary increase.  

5. Agenda Presentation: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

6. Time Requested: Click or tap to enter a date. 
(Request will be granted if Possible) allotted time not more than 15 minutes 

7. Is this Item Budgeted (If Applicable): Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

8. If no, State Action Required: 

a. Budget Action: N/A 

b. Financial Impact Summary 
Statement:   

N/A 

c. Detailed Analysis Attached N/A 

d. Budget Officer Approval: N/A 

 If approved enter date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

9. Background:  (Why is the action necessary, and what action will be accomplished) (All 
supporting documentation must be attached if any)  

County Attorney Anne Bast Brown’s request for a 3% pay increase at the December 8, 
2020, Levy County Commission meeting violated established processes and procedures 
used by the Board. She bypassed the budgetary process required of all other 
departments. Commissioner Mike Joyner, to his credit, voted against the raise, pointing 
out that with everything the taxpayers have endured this year, Ms. Brown should not 
have asked for additional pay. Ms. Brown is one of the highest paid employees working 
for the Levy County Commission, if not the highest paid employee. The December 8th pay 
raise was not the first one she received this year. Ms. Brown received a $1.54 hourly 
increase on June 20, 2020, another $.24 increase on September 26, 2020, and then she 
requested and was awarded an additional 3% or $1.80 hourly increase on December 8th. 
Her base pay is now $61.79 per hour. She also asked for the raise to be retroactive to 
October 1, 2020. Her 2004 employment contract includes other perks. The personnel 
policy she authored includes exceptions for her. Ms. Brown’s retirement benefit package 
is tied to her wages which makes her $4,000 financial impact summary statement 
inaccurate and dishonest. She will receive considerably more than $4,000 increase in pay. 
When State retirement benefits are factored in, her total compensation package rises to 
$182,859.64. The financial impact will continue after Ms. Brown retires and until her 
death. That is a huge financial impact and burden on Levy County taxpayers for many 
years. This 3% retroactive increase is a slap in the face to all the hard-working employees 
of Levy County and a gut punch for taxpayers, because of the size of the raise and the fact 

mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org


Levy County Board of County Commissioners Agenda Item Summary Form 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson Florida 32621 
Telephone (352) 486-5218   Fax (352) 486-5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org  Website:  www.levycounty.org 
 

that she bypassed the Board’s budgetary process to get it. She has stated that she is not a 
litigator or a labor law attorney and therefore does not deal with any of those functions. 
She farms out litigation and labor law to her consulting attorneys at taxpayers expense.  

She should have been required to defend her need for a pay raise during the County 
Commission budget process earlier this year. She stated that the need for her raise was 
due ever-increasing amount of legal and administrative duties. The fact that her raise 
circumvented the usual budget process raises many questions about how it was done and 
why it was done. I am asking the Board at this time to rescind Attorney Brown’s 3% pay.  

 

10. Recommended Approval 

a. Department Director: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

b. County Attorney: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

c. County Coordinator:  Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

d. Other: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org







	appIS075e2eee76a24d419045608061bd98bc
	appIS3a9ee5505b2c4fe2be6ed8f66993be3d
	appIS2615f5c768274042957bf21b8d73590b
	appISe0eadf59842a4b5e820e9fb7309c4cdd
	appIS21e7c5b0ce644215ab1cf2149cd02ca5
	appIS4e1c59ad72ac4a9f9bcaefe3ef40eac2
	appISd17089325d5341de828c561799ca3485
	appIS95945193cd1f4f8686a39ab8c6f2431c
	appISa1bfc93c1b824ddc9ec869dde32b68a7
	appIS1ebd3c8479b94e79b826b95dd8023d70
	appIS8161047b92aa42caab079885578c01fa

